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" Prior to entry being made into the apartment, Latent Print Examinergpwere T
‘summoned to the scene where photographs were taken of the exterior abd o
surrounding area of the complex. Prior to entry being made into the — "
apartment, an electrostatic dust lifter was used on the sidewalk area in
front of the apartment. Prior to entry into the apartment, -it was noticed
that the door to number 4 was hinged to the right with the doorknoeb to the ‘
left. Approximétely 18 inches above the floor area was a circular hole in -l'- -
‘the door which appeared to be fresh. It is unknown at this time what )
caused the damage but the hole jtself was approximately 2 inches in

diameter. Photographs were taken 9f this damage. ' 5
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The location of this occurrence is known as 2635 N, 16 Street, ans )
apartment complex of block construction, flat roof with the compﬁgx_ i
“containing 10 apartment units which are efficiency apartments. The= .. Q;f
entrance to these apartments are all located to the south side of £he %~
complex with no exit. Apartment #4 is the fourth apartment to the Eﬁst%o' ,
.16 Street. _ L ST . e, = i
N A T S - e ' =z %

As the apartment door was opened, photographs were taken from the doorway
(’“owing the victim, the interior of the apartment itself and its condition
. officers entered. The apartment itself is an efficiency apartment which
a2 one room apartment with a bath to the northwest. The bedroom, living
_1o0m, kitchen are all contained in one area with the kitchen to the north,
‘living area to the west and bedroom area to the south portion near the
- front door area. ‘ e

After photographs were taken of the interior of the apartment,
electrostatic dust lifter was used on the tile floor for possible
footprints. : .

Examination of the apartment revealed that the victim was lying on the bed i
face down with his head hanging over the north side of the bed. The victim
was fully clothed except for his shoes which were lying beside his left
leg on top of the bed. The victim’s body was positioned with his head to
the north and his feet extended towards the south. On the bed near the
victim’s left leg, were the victim’s tennis shoes, both were untied.
Examining the bottom of the victim's socks, which were still on his feet,
jndicated that the victim had been on his feet at some period of time
prior to his death because of the dirt transfer. The bed that the victim
was lying on was partially made with a blue blanket beneath the victim's
bedy. A blue striped towel was lying at the victim's waist partially on
his buttocks, left side. Both pillows were near the head of the bed which
is to the east, one with flower design and one with a sailboat seeded
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des1gn. On top of the victim’s back at the wa1st11ne was a playing card, ' @
ace of hearts, with a nude male. This card was standing upright and :
supported by the victim's shirt. The remainder of the playing cards were
lying to the victim’s right side on top of the bed. All the cards were of
the same nature, being pornographic, and with pictures displaying only
male nude bodies. g

In an examination of the victim’s levis, it was noticed that on the left
leg, just slightly above the knee, was blood smear transfer on the outside
portion of the leg This transfer was not consistent with the victim’s '
-injuries. On the victim's right leg, near the ankle, was a second blood
smear and on the blue blanket between the victim’s legs. Slightly west of
the victim’s left leg, between the ankle and the knee, was a blue small
bag which was turned inside out and no evidence was nearby as to what the
bag contained. |

Near the victim’s right waist, lying on top of the bed, was a ﬁéftiallij“'”
eaten bologna and cheese sandw1ch which was totally dried out and
distorted to the point that denture impressions yould be impossible.

It should be noted at the time investigators entered the sapartment, it

there was only one light on in the house, which was the bathroom._There is

/’\ switch at the doorway to turn any lights on in the living room area of ] i
> house, only the front porch. The nearest light switch to illuminate i
e kitchen or living room was located in the kitchen area near .the stove.

" Examination of the victim's body, revealed full rigor mortis and the
victim had begun decomposition. The victim’s left hand was beneath his

- stomach area with the fingers protruding in an upward position near his
right side. The victim’s right arm was lying in a pool of blood directly
below the victim’s head. Just slightly west of the victim’s shoulder was a
wooden handled short straight edge screwdriver which appeared to have
blood on the handle. !

On top of the victim’s shirt and nair was sugar scattered from the head
down to the waistline. An empty bag of sugar was found underneath the
nightstand just north of the victim with some sugar spread on the floor.
The victim's shirt was noticed ripped at the scene near the left underarnm
area and around his neck was a black electrical cord, 3 prong type with
the ground prong bent backward indicating that the cord possibly was
jerked from a wall plug. The end wires of this electrical cord appear to
have been stripped apart but the wiring itself did not appear to have been
jerked from its original appliance. This cord was of heavy gauge, similar
to a refrigerator or other kitchen appliance cord. The cord itself was
wrapped around the victim's neck with the end lying on the floor with no
obvious tie or knot. Examination of the victim's neck backside, I noticed
several small puncture wounds and bruising consistent with the screwdriver

"ade. These injuries do not appear to be deep. On the victim's back, it

5 noticed a small scratch starting about the left shoulder blade
extending down to the center of the back. This injury did not appear to be
deep and only a small amount of blood was noticed near the shoulder blade.
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Prior to turning the victim over,. photographs were taken of his original

position and all obvious signs o{'evidence and injuries that were noted.
/Examination of the victim’s hands, several hairs were ﬁgyné SBWEEe”fingerS?
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On the victim’s left hand, little finger, between the tip and second
joint, two injuries were noticed which were consistent or similar to a
bite. Inside palm of the victim’s left hand was blood splattering and
smears down to and including the wrist area.

An examination of the victim’s head, I noticed what appeared to be
injuries, possibly stab wounds at the forehead and over the right eye.’
Several abrasions were noticed on the elbows, both right and left. An
examination of the victim's chin area and neck area in the center near
midline was a bruise and abrasion where the electrical cord had been
secured around the victim’s neck. It should be noted that the electrical Ol
cord as earlier mentioned not in fact tied in any type of knot and it is .

-believed that the victim was strangled from the rear, possibly while lying
on the bed. To the victim’s left shoulder, blood smears were noted on the
blanket and over the edge of the bed on the bottom portion of the )
mattress, indicating that the victim was alive for some period of time on
the bed, possibly moving near the edge of his own strength or possibly
" *=ing the struggle. Near the northwest corner of the bed was a drag mark

© :h appeared to be at least 3 fingers dragging from east to west to the
c..ner edge of the bed. Directly north of the victim’s bed approximately
24 inches was a sole pattern on the tile floor in blood, not consistent
with the victim’s tennis shoes. Examination of the living room area of the
apartment, other similar sole pattern designs were noted. Near the closet
which is situated to the north end of the kitchen area was a large amount
of sugar spilled on the floor with a very distinctive sole impression in
the sugar which was later photographed and casts made of this impression
for later analysis. The same sole pattern was found going towards the
bathroom area on the tile floor but the entire sole was not observed. The
pattern that was found was obviously the front portion of the shoe sole.
This pattern was sprayed with a lacquer base coating and later remnoved in
its original condition by taking the tile from the floor.

After photographing and casting the sole pattern in the sugar pattern, the
name Addidas was noticed on the arch area of the sole. The victim's shoes
on his bed were not at Addidas and no Addidas tenniis shoes were found
inside the victim’'s apartment. It should also be noted that the sole
pattern that was photographed was of a larger size than the victim’s
shoes.
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Examination of the apartment, jt was noticed that the victim or other
unidentified persons had prepared .a bologna and cheese sandwich near the
table which is situated against the east wall slightly north of the bed.
Cheese wrappers were found on the table and a loaf of bread was noticed on
the sink area. A jar of mayonnaise and knife were also found on the table,
open with two stainless steel forks. On the sink in the kitchen, blood
smears were noticed on the edge and on the faucets, especially on the cold
knob. Other blood smears were noticed in the bathroom on the sink area but
none observed on the faucet knobs themselves. ' ' '

In the living area was a dresser, T.V., small table and an easy chair. The
chair obviously had been moved from its original position which is
believed to be against the north wall which adjoins the kitchen area. The
dresser which was against the west wall of the living room was a 3 drawer
light colored wood with the drawers pulled outward and contents strewn
around the floor.

The window curtains were pulled, covering the window on the south wall of
the apartment and upon examination of the curtains, there was blood found
on the edges inside towards the window. There was some blood droplets on
the outside of the curtain towards the bed. The curtains were removed and
~=tained for future analysis. ‘

‘. aippeared that the victim and person/s unknown had been involved in a
fight or scuffie prior to the victim being killed and it is believed that
the other person/s possibly were injured because of the blood smears on
the victim's pants and on the bed along with one droplet on the floor near
the stove. : . CT

The closet located on the north wall of the apartment had been gone
through with several items pulled out, lying on the floor near the sugar.

Several items were located in the apartment, including a male nude
calendar and male nude posters, along with notes and letters which would
indicate that the victim is in fact homosexual.

After photographs were taken, all items of evidenciary value were removed
and impounded for scientific analysis. See diagram for locations of
footprints and other items of evidence described in this report.
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! SUPPLEME../ MNATE ; DR #
| 12-26-8. !  89-186504

B VICTIM S NAME :
DYER, CHESTER i

LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE
2635 N. 16 STREET #4

, ] OFFICER WRITING REFORT & #
: =+ DET. FOQUA #1660

i SUFFLEMENT #
i 89-186504.04A

DATE & TIME TYPED .BUREAU CLERK
JANUARY 2, 1990 3:03 ™ _ GIB Al724

. Victim: 4 feet 3 inches north and

. Electrical cord: 34 inches west of

. Jﬁgoaen handle screwdriver on bed

,;Christmas wrap and athletic bag

1
2
3
4
5. Blood smear consistent with fingers
6
7 F66£print (partial)
8

. Blue Jacket with blood on sleeve

'iil'Footprint (partial)

" Cheese wrapper and two forks
A11.' Footprint in sugar

1z. Footprint in sugar (partial)
13. ;ﬁlqod smear on sink edge

14. - Bicycle

15.. Broken fingernail

9 inches west of door

east wall
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Faderal Public Defend
Capital HebaasUnner

City of Phoenix
To: Stacy Hill, Sergeant ' Date: January 29, 2007
Property Management Bureau

From: Suzanne Shaw, Detective . Ma@bg’
Property Management Bureau

 Subject: BPL INVOICE #177-188-5 , ITEMS #6, 7, 8.

$

" PURPOSE '
Memo to document discovery of missing property, items #6, 7, 8 (descnbed as “Broken
finger nail”, “Hairs left hand victim”, “Hairs face victim”) under invoice #177-188-5 and
request location entry of LOST be attached to the original invoice in the active BPL file.

A copy of this memo documenting item status has been requested by Investigator Lisa
Eager, Federal Public Defender Phoenix Office, Capital Habeas Unit, 850 W. Adams St,

- Suite #201, Phoenix AZ 85007. Ms. Eager is unable to withdraw outstanding DNA
analyS|s requests until the status is resolved

INTRODUCTION ‘

All reports, impounds, laboratory requests & results, etc. related to this case are pre-
PACE and pre-automatio.n. The designation BPL stands for Book Page Line, the
previous method for assigning impound invoice inventory numbers in consecutive order
as property was received for storage at the Property Management Bureau, regardless of
when items came mto police custody. ,

All of the collected evidence is, or should be, currently in possession of the Clerk of the
Superior Court, Central Court Exhibits (lncludmg the photographs and latents, which
were never invoiced or stored at PMB under the pre-automation system).

The stored court exhibits were checked in 2000 by Detective Scott and Ms. Eager for
the missing items. They were not found. Det. Scott was unable at that time to locate
the items at PMB either, but no memo documenting this information was provided to

PMB or the Capital Habeas Unlta He has retlred from the Phoenix Police Department.

BACKGROUND
The missing property is related to homicide DR 89-186504, deceased victim Chester
Dean Dyer. The original impounding officer, Detective R. E. Fuqua #1660, is deceased.

The current assigned Detective Gayle Jarrell and his supervisor Sgt. Jack Millward
requested an additional search of PMB storage locations in November 2006 for any
property related to this case, currently under a death penalty review by the federal
Capital Habeas Unit. The federal review is assigned to Investigator Lisa Eager.
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| reviewed the DR and the related lmpound invoices | could find: :

177-188-5 Det. R. Fuqua #1660 121689 1300 hrs. (See all attached cop|es)
177-201-5 Det. R. Fuqua #1660 121689 1300

177-224-1  Det. M. Chambers #1678 122189 0900

177-264-2 Det. M. Chambers #1678 122389 1700 ,

177-284-6  Det. R. Fuqua #1660 122789 (no time entry)

178-150-2  Det. R. Fuqua #1660 121689 1300

The missing items were not duplicated on other invoices. The report does mention

- impounds of other property not accounted by the BPLs, such as the photographs, the
latent lifts, and comparison cards (which were collected and stored at non-PMB
locations per policy at that time).

The invoice was created on a Saturday 12-16-89. Invoice notes for 177-188-5
document that all the listed items were supposed to be in one liberty box when it was
left by Det. Fuqua at the Crime Lab. The one box was noted on the invoice as being in
the lab on 121989, which was a Tuesday. See written note circled on the. invoice of “in
lab one box 12-19-89 P F W". The BPL number was assigned 121989 by PW and
the invoice was logged in the BPL book by VT A2893 (Veronica Torres).

' Everything except Item #38 (the windbreaker) was returned by a Lab person known only
as “l. M.” on 010590 (it has 010589 written on the sign in page- incorrect year) to PMB
property technician “F. O. L. #A2413 “(Francis O’Laughlin) who recorded there was “1
LIB. BOX" and placed in into storage freezer #C. Item #38 was returned from the Lab
packaged in a paper bag by “l. M.” on 011190 to property technician F. O. L. #A2413,
and th|s bag was placed into a freezer, in box 198.

- The iteris were not signed out again until 061490 at 0951 hours by Det. Mike Chambers
(|n|t|als M D C on the form) #1678. This is the same date all the other case related BPL
invoices had the property signed out for court purposes.

The invoice was deadfiled 011791 by “K. D. A3145" (Kenneth Dunlap) when a policy
decision was made by the administration to remove invoices, including SIgned out &
court retained items, if the actual items were not stored on site. This invoice, along with
the other case invoices, was re-activated 121092 by RAK A3244 (Doris De Knegt) when
the pohcy was changed and returned to the active invoice files. There has been no
activity since.

I checked the BPL totes in the freezers, refrlgerator and the warehouse but did not find -
any items related to this case. However, an audit of the freezers and refrigerator was in
progress and Supervrsor Kolbeck suggested another check after the audit was finished.

| requested and recelved a.copy of the court exhibit list (see attached copies). The
items were not introduced as exhibits during the trial.
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This information was given to Investigator Eager. | told her that all the items should
have been in the box except for #38 when it was taken to court. Since items are
received sealed, leave sealed, there were no sign outs, and no requests in the report for
analysis on the mlssmg items, the items should have been inside the box.

Ms. Eager called me later. She had checked through all the stored court exhibits again
but items #6, 7, and 8 were still not found.

ADDITIONAL RESEARCH

The freezer and refrigerator audits have been completed | have re-checked the
refrigerator and freezer BPL sections and did not find any items related to the known
BPL invoices for thIS case.

| re-checked the warehouse BPL rows and had the warehouse technicians also check
but no items were found. | have also'checked the warehouse BPL audit logs made by
property technicians Villa, Colbert, and Reynoso. None of the case related BPL
invoices are on these audit pages.

The Lab logs are in archive. | contacted Laboratory Admin. Assistant Jennifer Laird and
requested a check for any original case notes, property inventory lists, etc. which might
remain for this case. | was notified this week that no files, notes, lists; etc exist for this
case outside of the original report supplements entered at the time of the investigation.
This DR number does not ‘appear on any remaining archive inventory pages for stored
Lab materials. 4

Ms. Eager was informed 012907 that | have no additional information. Based on her
search of the court exhibits and my search at PMB the items can not be located.

SUMMARY

The items are presumed to have been in the original box. There is no documentation to
indicate they were removed and sent outside of the department for analysis. The items
could have been lost during the initial processing of other items. whlle at the Lab.

The sealed box was sent to the courts for trial in June 1990. The items were not
introduced during the trial. Itis possnble they were lost during the handling of the
introduced exhibits.

They were not found in the 2000 check of court exhibits. All other items listed on the
original invoice were still in the exhibit room at that time. Det. Scott had some checking
done at that time but the extent of his i lanIry is unknown

The |tems have been known to be missing since 2000 but | could find nothing to show
PMB was notified, based on a check of the Lost Property books. If Det. Scott had
reported the items as lost, by bureau policy it have initiated a search and documentation:
of the item status should have been attached to the original invoice.
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A search has been made at PMB and Ms. Eager has re-checked the court exhibits. The
items were not been located during any prior audlts

RECOMMENDATION _
Recommend a location of LOST be entered for items #6, 7, and 8 of BPL invoice 177-
188-5 along with a copy of the MEMO to be attached to the original invoice on file.

Also, a copy confirming the status of LOST needs to be provided to Ms. Eager as we
can not provide the items requ1red to complete the new request for DNA analysis
requnred for mandated review

Please fonNard through the chain of command for final review a‘hd recommendations.

N Wores smo QW@%%ﬁwgsyp
SPIPERA ‘ 7 7
-30-07 7]eted - O/C ,Zé/gaa‘,@ Zes
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Declaration by Lisa Eager

I, Lisa Eager, declare under penalty of perjury, the following to be true to the
b;ast of my information aﬁd belief:

1. My name is Lisa Eager, and 1 arﬁ an investigafor for the Office of the'
- Federal Public Defender, Capitai Habeas Unit, in Phoenix, Arizona. I am the
investigator aésigned to the Jeffrey Landrigan case.

2. Aspart of my investigation in the Landrigan case, I attempted to view all
items of evidence and property under the control of the Phoenix Police Department
that were coliectéd at the crime scéne.

3. After the DNA Order was signed; I contacted the Phoenix Police
Department to .obtain the items for DNA‘ tesﬁng. The police department informed me
that they would contact me to make arrangements for the transferv of the items for
DNA tesﬁng.

4, On November 9,2006,1 spokg to Sgt. Millward of Phoenix Policé
Department to eXplain Iwas .looking for items in this case. Ifaxed aletter of request
to Sgt. Millward explaining exactly which items I was looking for.

5. After receiving my letter of request by fax, Sgt. Millward told me that the

items were missing and that he would have Det. Suzanne “Sam” Shaw look for the



missing items. He said if anyone could find the missing items, it would be Det. Shaw.,

6. On November 29, 2006, I spoke to Det. Shaw. She agreed to search the
envelopes in a freezer because Phoenix Policé Department had completed a freezer
invehtory a few months before. Det. Shaw also told me that if a box of evidence went
to court at the time of trial, the miésing items might still be there.

7. I went back to the exhibits room of the Maricopa County.Superior Court
and looked for the items again. Again, nothing other than the actuai items that were
used as court exhibits were there.

8. On December 12, 2006, 1 spoke to Det. Shaw by telephone who told me
that she could not find the items in the police freezer. I informed Det. Shaw that the
Attorney General’s Office was told the items of evidence were avaiiable for Viewiﬁg.

Det. Shaw sounded frustrated and wanted to know who told the Attorney General the

items were available. I told her I did not know. Det. Shaw explained she could notlyet

say the items were unavailable. I explained to her I was unable to speak to the lead

detective on the case because he was deceased. Det. Shaw said the lab was “not being

very helpful.” They told her they would send someone over to look through the |

books at their warchouse when sofneone could break away. When I told Det. Shaw

the items in question were never analyzed she said they would be more difficult to

locate. She said the old record books would take a while to go through. Det. Shaw ’



believed part of the reluctance on the part of fheir lab was that they could not say they
ever had the items in question. Det. ShawA said she would speak to her supervisor
there again, Greg Ballard, to see if she coﬁld g’ét a firm date from him when he would
have the information for her. This would compel him to 'send. someone to look
through the books.
a. .I offered t'o go to the warehouse myself and look through the boqks for
Det. Shaw. She said this probably would not be possible since she has
never even looked at the books and they would have to have someone
watch me to make sure I didn’t rip any pages out of the books.. I
suggested to Det. Shaw if they Would be able to assign someone to
watch me review the books. that they possibly could just assign that |
person to réview the books. She did not think they would let me review -
the books. |
b. Det.‘ Shaw and I ended our call with her committing to phoning her
supervisorto see if there was any progress and getting them to commit
to a date they would have the information for us.
9. On January 23, 2007 I telephoned Det. Shaw to inquire about the status
. of my request. Det. Shaw said she “forgot” about my request and would follow up

-regarding the missing evidence and lab reports.



10.  On January 29, 2007, I received a phone call fronﬁ Det. Shaw admitting
that the evidence in question was “lost.” I discussed with Det. Shaw my need for
some form of documentation from her agency as I had been searching for these items
fora nﬁmber of years. Det. Shaw agreed to write a memo explaining the search and
- said she would send me a copy once it was approved by her supervisor.

11.  OnFebruary 1,2007, Ireceived in the mail a four page memo from Det.
Shaw Wri’tten to Sgt. Stacy Hill of the Property Management Bureau of Phoenix
Police Department in which they okayed the items to be considered “lést.” (Attac;hed
hereto as Exhibit A.) | |

12.  OnFebruary 27,2007, representatives from Phoenix Police Department,
the Attorney General’s Office, and the Federal Pubﬁc Defender’s Office met at the
| Medicall Examiner’s Office, 701 W. Jefferson Streef, Phoenix, -at 11:00 a.m., to
discuss the issue of the missing evidence aﬁd lab reporté. The head of the lab, Roger
Schneider, was there, as was Sgt. Millward. Also present at the meeting was attorney
Chris Plourd, a consultant for fhe Federal Defendér’s Office, who specializes in
forensics and DNA issues. At this meeting, we were given a packet of information
which included lab notes we had been previously given and some lab notes that, up
until the date of this meeting, had never ‘been seen by the défen.se. (Attached hereto

as Exhibit B.)




13. On February 27, 2007, Chris Plourd and I went to Maricopa County
Superior Court to view the items that were used as exhibits in the trial. We again
checked for any possibility that the nﬁssing items of vproperty were at the court but
there was nothing other than the actiial court exhibits.

14.  On March 14, 2007 I received a telephone call erm Det. Shaw. She said
she was looking in the “Y” freezer for fhe nﬁssing liberty box and should be through
that freezer the following week.

15. On March 16,2007 1 received a call from Det. Shaw. She informed me
she had located the missing liberty box in this case. It was in the refrigerator, not the
freezer, and it was mislabeled. The reference number is 178.150.2. The liberty box
was sealed inside of a bié-hazard bag. Det. Shaw said she could not ;)pen the bag
without a case agent present. I was told to contact Sgt. Millward to set up a time to
go view the contents of the box. |

16.  On March 21, 2007 I spoke to Sgt. Millward regarding viewing the
recéntly located property. Sgt. Millward wanted to “prepare” me he said: there had
been a fire sprinkler leak and the box had flooded. He said there should be a report
“somewhere” Jto document this which he would attempt to locate. He explained the
procedure back then would have been to take everything out of the box, dry it as

much as possible, and then re-store it. He said if the items were at all damp when



they went into the hazardous materials (“haz-mat”) bag then they Would be very
moldy when we viewed them. Due to this, I was told that we would have to wear haz-
mat suits when we view the property.

17. Dét. Tom Daguanno of the Phoenix Police Department telephoned me

to info@ me they had scheduled the viewing of the evidt::nce for March 29, 2006 at
9:00 a.m. Det. Daguanno said he had opened the box and there were 6-8 paper sacks
as well as some envelopes in the box. He said he did not open any of the items |
because he was not wearing the ﬁroper géar at the time. He also informed me that
they would have a photographer present to do a photo inventory of the items. Det.
Daguanno confirmed based on the appearance of the box it had been damaged in the |
sprinkler head malfunction in the freezer a number of years ago. He also said the
contents of the box were never re—frdzen.

18. - On March 29, 2007, I met with Det. Daguanno and another detective to
view the items. A photographer from Phoenix Police Department photo graphed the
items and although they promised to provide me with the photos on a disk, I am still
waiting to receive it.

a. During the viewing of the items, the detectives took an inventory of the

box and repackaged all of the items. Det. Shaw was present during part

of this viewing. The fingernail and hair were not in this box and are still



missing. I asked if there was anyplace else Det. Shaw could look. Det.
Shaw then gﬁpped me firmly by the wrist and led me through an lofﬁce
and-into the doorway of a large warehouse that resembled a Costco in
size. Det. Shaw- asked, “Where do you suggest I begin?”” I informed her
I had no idea but I would be checking back with her from time to time
regarding her progress and thanked her for her efforts.

19. On June 5, 2007, I spoke to attorney Chris Plourd by telephone and
informed him the items we were looking for (hair, fingernail) had not been located.
We discussed the possibility of testing other eVidence that appeared to have
biological matter on it that could be DNA tested in lieu of the missing items.

-~ 20. © On July 31, 2007, at 9:00.a.m. I met with Det.. J.J. Cleary of Phoenix
Police Department at their property site, 100 E. Elwood, in Phoenix, to pick up one
piece of property recently located: Item 36, living room drapes. Also present while
I took possession of the drapes‘:“ Det. Gayle and Det. Shaw. I asked Det. Shaw if she
had any success in locating the missing items in this case. She said she had not. I
provided Det. Clearly with a copy of a court order in which the attorneys for Jeffrey
Landrigan were given permission to have DNA analysis performed in this case. Det.
Cleary signed out Athe drapes and gave them to me. |

21. On - August 3, 2007, the drapes were sent by Fed Ex to Technical
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Associates,.Incorporated, in Ventura, California, for analysis;

22. On approximately July 25,2007, I contacted Lillian Barnett of Maricopa
County Superior Court AExhibits Department at 602.506.3330. I expiained. to Ms.
Barnett that our office had a court order for DNA testing and that we would like to

~ have two items from their exhibits department. When I read the court order over the

" phone to Ms. Barnett, she said the order was too vague and had to be specific to the

items we would be removing. I was instructed the order needed to 'include the case
number: CR90-00066, the date of the hearing (June 18, 1990), the exhibit numbers
| of the items to be removed (Plaintiff’s Exhibit #22 Levis™ and Plaintiff’s Exhibit # |
23 Blanket), and the name of the person to whom the items would be released and
that the reason was for DNA testiﬁg. I was also informed we must provide them with
the original court order or a certified copy.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of
America and the State of Mizona that ;the foregoing is true and correct.

Signed this 6th day of August, 2007, at Phoenix, Arizona.

E )

LlS M. Eager
Federal Public Defender 'S Ofﬁce
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A Confidential-Privileged Communication

Summary Report of DNA Analysis
TAl Case #2826
Maricopa County Case #CR-90-00066
State v. Jeffrey Landrigan

22 April 2008

Background:

This case involves the homicide of Chester Dyer, Phoenix Police Department DR
#89-184504. Jeffrey Landrigan has been convicted of this crime. Technical
Associates, Inc. (TAl) was requested fo examine two beige curfains {ltem #36),
one pair of blue jean pants (ltfem #22), and one blue blanket {item #12)
collected in the investigation of this crime for evidence of biological materials
and, if found, perform DNA analysis in an attempt to identify ifs origin.

Chain-of Custody:

On é August 2007, TAl received two beige curtains (Phoenix PD DR#89-186504,
ltemn #36) via FedEx from Investigator Lisa Eager, Office of the Federal Public
Defender for the District of Arizona.

On 17 September 2007, Investigator Eager requested that TAl send one saliva
collection kit fo Deputy Warden Toersbijns at the Arizona State Prison — Florence
for the purpose of collecting a reference sample from Jeffrey Landrigan. On this
date, TAl sent the saliva collection kit via FedEx to Mr. Toersbijns.
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On 20 September 2007, TAl received one pair of blue jean panis (Phoenix PD
DR#89-186504, Item #22) and one blue blanket (Phoenix PD DR#8%9-186504, ltem
#12) via FedEx from Investigator Eager.

- On 24 September 2007 TAl received the saliva collection kit via FedEx from
Captain S. Fay, Arizona Department of Cormrections. Included was a photocopy
of the ADC inmate photo identification card belonging 1o Jeffrey Timothy
Landrigan (date of birth 3-17-1962), and TAl's donor worksheet allegedly signed
by Mr. Landrigan. .

Method:

The items of evidence were examined visually and using an alternate light
source. Substrates that appeared o contain blood were tested with Ortho-
Tolidine [OT} reagents, a presumptive test for blood. Stains suspected of
containing semen were tested for acid phosphatase (AP} activily, a presumptive
test for semen. A low volume water wash was performed on each of the
samples to isolate soluble proteins. This was followed by a large volume water
wash to isolate cellular debris and remove hemoglobin. A portion of this cellular
debris was examined microscopically for the presence of nucleated epithelial
cells and spermatozoa. A portion of the low volume water wash was tested for
p30 {a protein found in semen) and amylase activity (amylase is an enzyme
found in high concentrations in saliva). A differential DNA exiraction process
was performed on the cellular material isolated from the samples collected
from the blue blanket and the pair of blue jean pants in order to separate the
DNA into the non-sperm or epithelial cell (/EC) fraction and the sperm cell (/SP)
fraction. An organic DNA exiraction was performed on the apparent blood
samples collected from the beige curiains. A Chelex DNA extraction process
was performed on the saliva reference sample from Jeffrey Landrigan. Samples
indicating inhibition of the PCR process were subjected to the DNA IQ extraction
process. The extracted DNA from these samples was subjected o polymerase
chain reaction {PCR) amplification and DNA typing at the short tandem repeat
(STR) loci D351358, vWA, FGA, D8S§1179, D21311, D18S51, D5S818, D13S317, and
D75820 in addition to the Amelogenin locus for sex determination utilizing the
Profiler Plus system.

Sample Description:

Phoenix P'D DR#89-186504 item #36, beige curtains (two curtains)

o TA2826.01A1, OT posifive stain back of curtain #1, ~0.2cm x 0.3 cm
TA2826.01A2, OT positive stain back of curtain #1, ~0.6 cm x 0.2 cm

&
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» TA2826.01B1, OT positive stain front of curtain #2, ~0.6 cmx 1.0 cm
o TA2826.01B2, OT positive stain front of curtain #2, ~1.3cmx 1.1 cm
e TA2824.01B3, OT positive stain back of curtain #2, ~1.0cmx 1.0cm

Phoenix PD DR#89-186504 ltem#22, blue jean pants

o TA2826.02A1, AP positive stain inside front left pocket lining of blue jean
pants

o TA2826.02A2, AP positive stain inside front button hole flap of blue jean
pants :

o TA2826.02A3, AP positive stain inside front upper right leg of blue jean
pants

Phoenix PD DR#89-184504 ltem #12, blue blanket (side #1 and side #2)

TA2826.03A, OT positive stain, side #2 of blue blanket
TA2826.03B, OT positive stain, side #2 of blue blanket
TA2826.03C, AP positive stain, side #2 of blue blanket
TA2826.03D, OT positive stain, side #1 of blue blanket
TA2826.03E, AP positive stain, side #1 of blue blanket
TA2826.03F, AP positive stain, side #1 of blue blanket

New reference sample received by TAl on 24 September 2007 from Captain S.
Fay, Arizona Department of Corrections

o TA2826.04A, reference saliva, Jeffrey Landrigan

Resulls:

A brownish stained portion of material was sampled from the back of curtain #1
(TA2826.01A1) that tested positive for OT activity. No amylase activity was
detected. No AP activity was detected.

A brownish stained portion of material was sampled from the back of curtain #1
(TA2826.01A2) that tested positive for OT activity. No amylase activity was
detected. No AP activity was detected.

A brownish stained portion of material was sampled from the front of curiain #2

(TA2826.01B1) that tested positive for OT activity. No amylase activity was
detected. No AP activity was detected.
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A brownish stained portion of material was sampled from the front of curtain #2
(TA2826.01B2) that tested positive for OT activity. No amylase activity was
detected. No AP activity was detected.

A brownish stained portion of material was sampled from the back of curtain #2 7
(TA2826.01B3) and tested positive for OT activity. No dmylose activity was
detected. No AP activity was detected.

A stain located visually and using an alternate light source was sampled from
the inside front left pocket lining of the blue jean pants {TA2826.02A1). This stain
fested positive for AP activity and negative for amylase activity. P30 protein was
detected. A high number of spermatozoa and a low number of nucleated
epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

A stain located visually and using an alternate light source was sampled from
the inside front button hole flap of the blue jean pants (TA2826.02A2). This stain
tested positive for AP activity and negative for amylase activity. P30 protein was
detecied. A high number of spermatozoa and no nucleated epithelial cells
were observed microscopically.

A stain located visually and using an alternate light source was sampled from
the inside front upper right leg of blue jean pants (TA2826.02A3). This stain tested
positive for AP activity and negative for amylase activity. P30 protein was
detected. A low number of spermatozoa and a low number of nucleated
epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

A brownish stain that tested positive for OT activity was sampled from side #2 of
the blue blanket {TA2826.03A). No amylase or AP activity was detected. No p30
protein was detected. A low number of spermatozoa and a low number of
nucleated epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

A brownish stain that tested positive for OT activity was sampled from side #2 of
the blue blanket (TA2826.03B). No amylase or AP activity was detected. No p30
protein was detected. A low number of spermatozoa and a low number of
nucleated epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

A faintly visible stain that tested positive for AP activity was sampled from side #2
of the blue blanket (TA2826.03C). This stain tested negative for amylase activity
and p30 protein. A moderate number of spermatozoa and a low number of
nucleated epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

A brownish stain that tested positive for OT activity was sampled from side #1 of
the blue blanket (TA2826.03D). No amylase or AP activity was detected. No p30
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protein was detected. A low number of spermatozoa and a low number of
nucleated epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

A yellowish stain that tested positive for AP activity was sampled from side #1 of
the blue blanket (TA2826.03E}. This stain fested negative for amylase activity, but
a frace level of p30 protein was detected. A moderate number of spermatozoa
and a low number of nucleated epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

A yellowish stain that tested positive for AP activity was sampled from side #10of
the blue blanket {TA2824.03F). This stain tested negative for amylase activity, but
P30 protein was detected. A moderate number of spermatozoa and no
nucleated epithelial cells were observed microscopically.

The negative and positive conirols all amplified as expected and are not
included in the table below.

Fach item with the corresponding dlleles defec’réd is listed in the table below:
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Conclusions:

Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source of the DNA detected in each of the
samples tested by Technical Associates, Inc. in this case.

For the purposes of this report, stains having the appearance of a bloodstain
and testing positive with OT reagents will be referred to as bloodstains. Stains
containing spermatozod and showing AP activity or the presence of p30 protein
are referred to as semen stains.

DNA profiles detected that appear to originate from individuals for whom there
were no reference samples provided are referred to as unknown individuals. In
the testing performed, designations for unknown individual #1 {(IND #1}, and
unknown individual #2 (IND #2), are utilized to refer to these individuals as
possible sources of the DNA detected.

The DNA detected in the bloodstained material from the back of curtain #1 _
(TA2826.01A1), appears to originate from one male individual. Jeffrey Landrigan
is excluded as the source of this DNA. A low-level 23 dllele is detected at the
FGA locus in addition to two primary dileles.

The DNA detected in the bloodstained material from the back of curtain #1
(TA2826.01A2), appears to originate from one male individual. Jeffrey Landrigan
is excluded as the source of this DNA. A low-level 23 dllele is detected at the
FGA locus in addition to two primary alleles. '

The DNA detected in the bloodstained material from the front of curtain #2
(TA2826.01B1), appears to originate from one male individual. Jeffrey Landrigan
is excluded as the source of this DNA. A low-level 23 allele is detected at the
FGA locus in addition to two primary alleles.

The DNA detected in the bloodstained material from the front of curtain #2
(TA2826.01B2/1Q), appears to originate from one male individual. Jeffrey
Landrigan is excluded as the source of this DNA. A low-levei 23 dllele is
detected at the FGA locus in addition o two primary alleles.

The DNA detected in the bloodstained material from the back of curtain #2
(TA2826.01B3/1Q), appears to originate from one male individual. Jeffrey
Landrigan is excluded as the source of this DNA. Alow-level 23 allele is
detected at the FGA locus in addition o two primary alleles.

The same male individual, IND #1, could be the source of the DNA detected in
all of the bloodstains collected from the curiains: TA2826.01A1, .01A2, .018B1,
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01B2/1Q, and 01B3/1Q. The additional low-level 23 dllele detected at the FGA
locus in each of the samples appears to be a germ line mutation resulling in a
reproducible weak 23 allele when this individual’s blood is analyzed.

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the semen-stained material
from the inside front left pocket lining of the blue jean pants (TA2826.02A1/EC),
appears to originate primarily from one male individual. IND #1 is excluded as
the source of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source of this DNA.
Additional low-level dlleles detected at the D851172 and D35818 loci are
inconclusive as to origin.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the semen-stained material from
the inside front left pocket lining of the blue jean pants (TA2826.02A1/SP),
appears to originate from the same male individual as the primary donor of the
non-sperm cell fraction of this sample. This is expected if the stain contains
semen from one individual but not cellular material from another individual. IND
#1 is excluded as the source of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the
source of this DNA. A trace-level dllele detected at the vWA locus appears to
be an artifact of the PCR process

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the semen-stained material
from the inside front button hole flap of the blue jean pants
(TA2826.02A2/EC/IQ), appears to originate from one male individual. IND #1 is
excluded as the source of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source
~ of this DNA. A frace-level allele detected at the FGA locus appears to be an
artifact of the PCR process.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the semen-stained material from
the inside front button hole flap of the blue jean pants (TA2826.02A2/SP},
appears o originate from the same male individual as the primary donor of the
non-sperm cell fraction of this sample. This is expected if the stain contains
semen from one individual but not cellular material from another individual. {IND
#1 is excluded as the source of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the
source of this DNA., Weak- and trace-level alleles detected at the FGA and
D18S51 loci appear to be artifacts of the PCR process. :

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the semen-stained materiai
from the inside fron} upper right teg of blue jean pants (TA2826.02A3/EC/1Q),
appears to originate from one male individual. IND #1 is excluded as the source
of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source of this DNA.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the semen-stained material from
the inside front upper right leg of blue jean pants {TA2826.02A3/3P/1Q), is at a

very low level and is inconclusive as fo source. Only one STR dllele was :
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detected in this sample; this allele was at the D351358 locus. IND #1 could not
be the source of the one SIR allele detected in this sample. Jeffrey Landrigan
could not be the source of the one SIR dllele detected in this sample. No further
conclusions are made regarding the donor of this dllele.

A male individual, IND #2, could be the source of the DNA detected in the
semen stains collected from the blue jean pants, TA2826.02A1 (sperm cell
fraction and major donor of non-sperm cell fraction), .02A2 (sperm and non-
sperm cell fractions) and .02A3 (non-sperm cell fraction). IND #2 is excluded as
a source of the DNA detected in all of the bloodstains collected from the
curtains: TA2826.01A1, .01A2, .01B1, .01B2/1Q, and .01B3/1Q.

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the bloodstained material
from side #2 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03A/EC), appears to originate from one
male individual. IND #2 cannot be excluded as the source of this DNA. IND #1
is excluded as the source of this DNA. . Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the
source of this DNA.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the bloodstained material from
side #2 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03A/3P), appears to originate from the same
male individual as the non-sperm cell fraction from this sample. IND #2 cannot
be excluded as the source of this DNA. IND #1 is excluded as the source of this
DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source of this DNA.

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the bloodstained material
from side #2 of the blue blanket {TA2826.03B/EC/IQ), is a mixture of DNA from at
least two individuals. The primary donor of this DNA is a male individual. IND #2
cannot be excluded as the primary donor of this DNA. IND #1 is excluded as
the primary donor of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as a donor of this
DNA. Low-level dlleles were detected at the D351358, D8S1179, and D55818
loci. IND #1 cannot be excluded as the source of these low-level alleles. IND
#2 is excluded as the source of these low-level alleles. Jeffrey Landrigan is
excluded as a donor of this DNA,

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the bloodstained material from
side #2 of the blue blanket {TA2826.03B/SP}, is a mixture of DNA from at least two
individuals. IND #1 cannot be excluded as a source of some of the DNA
detected. IND #2 cannot be excluded as a source of some of the DNA
detected. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as a donor of any of the DNA detected
in this sample. Alleles that could not originate from IND #1 or IND #2 are
detected at the D351358, vWA, D8S1179, and D21511 loci. These alleles are from
a source other than IND #1, IND #2, or Jeffrey Landrigan.
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The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the faintly visible semen stain
from side #2 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03C/EC/IQ), appears to originate
primarily from one male donor. IND #2 cannot be excluded as the primary
source of this DNA. IND #1 is excluded as a donor of the DNA detected. Jeffrey
Landrigan is excluded as a donor of the DNA detected. One additional frace-
level allele was detected at the D331358 locus. This allele is from a source other
than IND #1, IND #2, or Jeffrey Landrigan. No further conclusions are made
regarding the donor of this dllele.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the faintly visible stain from side
#2 of the blue blanket {TA2826.03C/SP), appears to criginate from the same
male individual as the primary donor of the non-sperm cell fraction of this
sample. IND #2 cannot be excluded as the source of this DNA. IND #1is
excluded as the source of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source
of this DNA.,

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the bloodstained material
from side #1 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03D/EC), is a mixture of DNA from a}
least two individuals. IND #1 cannot be excluded as the primary donor of this
DNA. IND #2 is excluded as the primary donor of this DNA; however, additional
alieles were detected at the D351358, FGA, D8S1179, and D5S818 loci. IND #2
cannot be excluded as the source of these alleles. Jeffrey Landrigan is
excluded as a donor of any of the DNA detected in this sample.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the bloodstained material from
side #1 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03D/SP), is a mixture of DNA from at least two
individuals. IND #1 cannot be excluded as the primary donor of this DNA. IND
#2 is excluded as the primary donor of this DNA; however, additional alleles
were detected at the D351358 and D8S1179 loci. IND #2 cannot be excluded
as the source of these alleles. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as a donor of any
of the DNA detecied in this sample.

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the yellowish semen-stained
material from side #1 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03E/EC). appears to originate
from one male individual. IND #2 cannot be excluded as the source of this
DNA. IND #1 is excluded as the source of this DNA, Jeffrey Landrigan is
excluded as the source of this DNA.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the yellowish semen-stained
material from side #1 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03E/SP), appears to originate
from the same male individual as the primary donor of the non-sperm cell
fraction of this sample. This is expected if the stain contains semen from one
individual but not cellular material from another individual. IND #2 cannot be
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exc!ude’d as the source of this DNA. IND #1 is excluded as the source of this
DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source of this DNA.

The DNA detected in the non-sperm cell fraction of the yellowish semen-stained
material from side #1 of the blue blanket (TA2826.03F/EC), appears to originate
from one male individual. IND #2 cannot be excluded as the source of this
DNA. IND #1 is excluded as the source of this DNA. Jeffrey Landrigan is
excluded as the source of this DNA. An additional weak allele detected at the
D55818 locus may be an artifact of the PCR process or a low-level DNA donor.
No further conclusions are made regarding this additional allele.

The DNA detected in the sperm cell fraction of the yellowish semen-stained
material from side #1of the blue blanket (TA2826.03F/SP), appears to originate
from the same male individual as the primary donor of the non-sperm cell
fraction of this sample. This is expected if the stain contains semen from one
individual but not cellular material from another individual. IND #2 cannot be
excluded as the source of this DNA. IND #1 is excluded as the source of this
DNA. Jefirey Landrigan is excluded as the source of this DNA.

Jeffrey Landrigan is excluded as the source of any of the DNA detected in the
samples tested by Technical Associates, Inc. in this case.

Statistics:

Male individuals having the combinatfion of genetic markers such that they
could be the primary source of the DNA detected in samples TA2826.01A1,
0T1A2, 01B1, and .01B3/IQ {IND #1} are very rare. Evaluation of this profile in 179
different populations {following the recommendations of the 1994 National
Research Council (NRC) Report) shows that even in the population where this
profile would be most common, Korean, male individuals having this profile
would be expected to occur at about the rate of 1 in 34 billion men in this
population. Therefore, a male individual having this genetic profile is expected
to be rarer than 1 in 34 billion individuals in the general population.

Male individuals having the combination of genetic markers such that they
could be the primary source of the DNA detected in samples TA2826.02A1/EC,
02A1/SP, .02A2/EC/IQ, .02A2/SP, .03A/EC, .03B/EC/IQ, .03C/EC/IQ, .03C/SP,
.03E/EC, .03E/SP, .03F/EC, and .03F/SP (IND #2) are very rare. Evaluation of this
profile in 179 different populations (following the recommendations of the 1994
NRC Report} shows that even in the population where this profile would be most
common, Portuguese, male individuals having this profile would be expected fo
occur at about the rate of 1in 1.43 frillion men in this population. Therefore, a
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male individual having this genetic profile is expected to be rarer than 1in 1.63
trillion individuals in the general population.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at the
telephone number listed above.

Sincerely, - Reviewed by:
Richelle Neverson %:oﬁ Taylor
Forensic Scientist President/Lab Director
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Declaration by Lisa Eager

I, Lisa Eager, declare under penalty of perjury, the following to be true to
the best of my information and belief:

1. My name is Lisa Eager, and I am an investigator for the Office of the
Federal Public Defender, Capital Habeas Unit, in Phoenix, Arizona. I am the
investigator assigned to the Jeffrey Landrigan case.

2. Aspart of my investigation in the Landrigan case, I attempted to view
all items of evidence and property under the control of the Phoenix Police
Department that were collected at the crime scene. I wanted to view all items of
evidence; however, there were specific items in which I had a greater interest due
| to their potential exculpatory value. These were items number 6 (“broken
fingernail”), number 7 (“hairs left hand victim”), and number 8 (“hairs face
victim”). See DR # 89-186504 (attached as Exhibit 1),

3. In November, 2000, I contacted Det. Scott of the Phoenix Police
Department to schedule a time to view the e{fidence. Det. Scott worked for the
cold case unit but was the officer assigned to assist me since the investigating
officer, Det. Chambers, was deceased.

4. On November 8, 2000, Det. Scott and I met at the property room for
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Phoenix Police Department at 10:15a.m. The property personnel were unable to
locate the items of evidence at that time. Det. Scott and I waited until 11:50 a.m,
and then left. Det. Scott said he would contact me when the items were located.

5. On December 7, 2000, Det. Scott telephoned me to inform me the
evidence in question was not in the property freezer and was not in the lab freezer.
He told me the evidence was “gone.” At this time, Det. Scott agreed to write a
statement to this effect on Phoenix Police Department letterhead. He was off duty
when he phoned me but indicated he would write the statement the following
week when he returned to the office.

6. On December 11, 2000, Det. Scott telephoned me to inform me he had
spoken to his Supervi;sor about this matter. His supervisor said the items could be
in the basement of the court house. I had previously reviewed the property at
Maricopa County Superior Court in the Exhibits room in the basement of the court
house and had not seen the items. They were not used as exhibits for court. Det.
Scott said he would go and look at the court to see if the items in question were
there.

7. On December 19, 2000, Det. Scott telephoned me. He informed me the
items used as court exhibits were still at the court and the missing items from

Phoenix Police Department were still “missing.” Det. Scott said he did not know
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where else to look for these items. I again asked Det. Scott for a letter from him
indicating the items were missing. Det. Scott agreed to write a letter to this effect
on Phoenix Police Department letterhead. He said he would be back in his office
the following week and would do it then. I never received a letter from Det. Scott.

8. Ideclare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of
America and the State of Arizona that the foregoing is true and correct.

Signed this 20th day of October, 2010, at Phoenix, Arizona,

1@ger In st1

e
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SCENE DESCRIPTION:

~

TR fregpn -y Ei%ck;éeéf¢€y< ﬁiﬂﬂ&ﬁze, :

~

The location of this occurrence is known as 2635 N. 16 Street, aps
' apartment complex of block construction, flat roof with the compl$x
containing 10 apartment units which are efficiency apartments. Th ,
entrance to these apartments are all located to the south side of £he 2 %
complex with no exit. Apartment #4 is the fourth apartment to the Eﬁsﬁ;o'
.16 Street. S S : ‘ . ,.~“.;“A#3? b
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' Priér'to“éhtry being made into the apéftment, Latent Print Examiner

‘summoned to the scene where photographs were taken of the exterior abd<

sowere i

surrounding area of the complex. Prior to entry being made into the — " =77

apartment, an electrostatic dust lifter was used on. the sidewalk area in
front of the apartment. Prior to entry into the apartment, ‘it was noticed
that the door to number 4 was hinged to the right with the doorknob to the
" left. Approximately 18 inches above the floor area was a circular hole in
‘the door which appeared to be fresh. It is unknown &t this time what -
caused the damage but the hole itself was approximately 2 inches in
diameter. Photographs were taken of this damage. i

A§ the apartment door was opened, photographs were taken from the doorway
(:\owing the victim, the interior of the apartment itself and its condition
s officers entered. The apartment itself is an efficiency apartment which
is a one room apartment with a bath to the northwest. The bedroom, living
_room, kitchen are all contained in one area with the kitchen to the north,
‘living area to the west and bedroom area to the south portion near the
- front door area. S
After photographs were taken of the interior of the apartment,
electrostatic dust lifter was used on the tile floor for possible
footprints. ‘ '

Examination of the apartment revealed that the victim was lying on the bed
fece down with his head hanging over the north side of the bed. The victim
was fully clothed except for his shoes which were lying beside his left
leg on top of the bed. The victim’s body was positioned with his head to
the north and his feet extended towards the south. On the bed near the
victim’s left leg, were the victim’s tennis shoes, both were untied,
Examining the bottom of the victim's socks, which were still on his feet,
indicated that the victim had been on his feet at some period of time
prior to his death because of the dirt transfer. The bed that the victim
was lying on was partially made with a blue blanket beneath the victim'’s
bedy. A blue striped towel was lying at the victim’'s waist partially on
his buttocks, left side. Both pillows were near the head of the bed which
is to the east, one with flower design and one with a sailboat seeded
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design. On top of the victim’s back at the waistline was a playing card,
ace of hearts, with a nude male. This card was standing upright and
supported by the victim’s shirt. 'The remainder of the playing cards were
lying to the victim’s right side on top of the bed. All the cards were of
the same nature, being pornographic, and with pictures displaying only
male nude bodies. -

In an examination of the victim’s levis, it was noticed that on the left
~leg, Jjust slightly above the knee, was blood smear transfer on the outside
portion of the leg. This transfer was not consistent with the victim’s i
“injuries. On the victim’s right leg, near the ankle, was a second blood
‘smear and on the blue blanket between the victim’s legs. Slightly west of

the victim’s left leg, between the ankle and the knee, was a blue small

bag which was turned inside out and no evidence was nearby as to what the

bag contained. ’

Near;the victim's right wéist, lying on top of the bed, was a ﬁéftiallf‘"'”‘- )
eaten bologna and cheese sandwich which was totally dried out and T
distorted to the point that denture impressions Would be impossible,

It should be noted at the time investigators entered the apartment, it
there was only one light on in the house, which was the bathroom. There is
(:\ switch at the doorway to turn any lights on in the living room area of
.1e house, only the front porch. The nearest light switch to illuminate
the kitchen or living room was located in the kitchen area near .the stove.

Examination of the victim's body, revealed full rigor mortis and the
victim had begun decomposition. The victim’s left hand was beneath his
stomach area with the fingers protruding in an upward position near his
right side. The victim’s right arm was lying in a pool of blood directly
below the victim’s head. Just slightly west of the victim’s shoulder was a
wooden handled short straight edge screwdriver which appeared to have
blood on the handle, ‘

On top of the victim’s shirt and hair was sugar scattered from the head
down to the waistline. An empty bag of sugar was found underneath the
nightstand just north of the victim with some sugar spread on the floor.
The victim’s shirt was noticed ripped at the scene near the left underarm
area and around his neck was a black electrical cord, 3 prong type with
the ground prong bent backward indicating that the cord possibly was
jJerked from a wall plug. The end wires of this electrical cord appear to
have been stripped apart but the wiring itself did not appear to have been
Jerked from its original appliance. This cord was of heavy gauge, similar
to a refrigerator or other kitchen appliance cord. The cord itself was
wrapped around the victim's neck with the end lying on the floor with no
obvious tie or knot. Examination of the victim’s neck backside, I noticed
several small puncture wounds and bruising consistent with the screwdriver
‘lade. These injuries do not appear to be deep. On the victim's back, it

S noticed a small scratch starting about the left shoulder blade
extending down to the center of the back. This injury did not appear to be
deep and only a small amount of blood was noticed near the shoulder blade.
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Prior to turning the victim over,. photographs were taken of his original
position and all obvious signs of evidence and injuries that were noted.
Examination of the victim’s hands, several hairs were found on the fingers}
%?Etuckjinfbloodr”These"hhirg”wéré”FémHVéa*ahd“%ébﬁ?édwfd§“15%6F5§H£I§§1§?”ﬁ1;
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On the victim’s left hand, little finger, between the tip and second
joint, two injuries were noticed which were consistent or similar to a
bite. Inside palm of the victim’s left hand was blood splattering and
smears down to and including the wrist area.

v ML, e e e Al WL s e et ST

An examination of the victim’s head, I noticed what appeared to be
injuries, possibly stab wounds at the forehead and over the right evye.
Several abrasions were noticed on the elbows, both right and left. An
examination of the victim’s chin area and neck area in the center near
midline was a bruise and abrasion where the electrical cord had been
- secured around the victim’s neck. It should be noted that the electrical O
cord as earlier mentioned not in fact tied in any type of knot and it is -
-believed that the victim was strangled from the rear, possibly while lying
on the bed. To the victim’s left shoulder, blood smears were noted on the
blanket and over the edge of the bed on the bottom portion of the '
mattress, indicating that the victim was alive for some period of time on
the bed, possibly moving near the edge of his own strength or possibly
(:\ring the struggle. Near the northwest corner of the bed was a drag mark
aich appeared to be at least 3 fingers dragging from east to west to the
corner edge of the bed. Directly north of the victim’s bed approximately
24 inches was a sole pattern on the tile floor in blood, not consistent
"with the victim’s tennis shoes. Examination of the living room area of the
apartment, other similar sole pattern designs were noted. Near the closet
which is situated to the north end of the kitchen area was a large amount
of sugar spilled on the floor with a very distinctive sole impression in
the sugar which was later photographed and casts made of this impression
for later analysis. The same sole pattern was found going towards the
bathroom area on the tile floor but the entire sole was not observed. The
pattern that was found was obviously the front portion of the shoe sole.
This pattern was sprayed with a lacguer base coating and later removed in
its original condition by taking the tile from the floor.

After photographing and casting the sole pattern in the sugar pattern, the
name Addidas was noticed on the arch area of the sole. The victim’s shoes
on his bed were not at Addidas and no Addidas tennis shoes were found
inside the victim’s apartment. It should also be noted that the sole

pattern that was photographed was of a larger size than the victim’s
shoes.

C
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Examination of the apartment, it Was noticed that the victim or other
unidentified persons had prepared a bologna and cheese sandwich near the
table which is situated against the east wall slightly north of the bed.
Cheese wrappers were found on the table and a loaf of bread was noticed on
the sink area. A jar of mayonnaise and knife were also found on the table,
open with two stainless steel forks. On the sink in the kitchen, blood
smears were noticed on the edge and on the faucets, especially on the cold
knob. Other blood smears were noticed in the bathroom on the sink area but
‘none observed on the faucet knobs themselves. :

In the living area was a dresser, T.V., small table and an easy chair. The
chair obviously had been moved from its original position which is
believed to be against the north wall which adjoins the kitchen area. The
dresser which was against the west wall of the living room was a 3 drawer
light colored wood with the drawers pulled outward and contents strewn
around the floor. : ‘ '
The window curtains were pulled, covering the window on the south wall of
the apartment and upon examination of the curtains, there was blood found
on the edges inside towards the window. There was some blood droplets on
the outside of the curtain towards the bed. The curtains were removed and
stained for future analysis. '

It appeared that the victim and person/s unknown had been involved in a
fight or scuffle prior to the victim being killed and it is believed that
the other person/s possibly were injured because of the blood smears on

the victim’s pants and on the bed along with one droplet on the floor near
the stove, . . )

The closet located on the north wall of the apartment had been gone
through with several items pulled out, lying on the floor near the sugar.

Several items were located in the apartment, including a male nude
calendar and male nude posters, along with notes and letters which would
indicate that the victim is in fact homosexual.

After photographs were taken, all items of evidenciary value were removed
and impounded for scientific analysis. See diagram for locations of
footprints and other items of evidence described in this report.
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LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE

(’ 2635 N. 16 STREET #4
~ GFFICER WRITING REFORT'S # H SUFFLEMENT #
.~ DET. FUQUA #1660 ~ i 89-186504 . 04A
) DATE & TIME TYPED _BUREAU CLERK
JANUARY 2, 1990 3:03 M A1724

GIB

Victim: 4 feet 3 inches north and 9 inches west of door

Electrlcal cord: 34 inches west of east wall

I
I -
" war

ugar bag

Blood smear consistent with fingers

_;Christmas wrap and athletic bag

1
2
3
4;’ fﬁooden handle screwdriver on bed
5
6
7

,Footpzino (partial)
3; E Blue Jacket with blood on sleeve

Footprint (partial)

10. Cheese wrapper and two forks

11.‘ Footprint in sugar

12. Footprint in sugar (partial) ,
13. ;ﬁlqod smear on sink edge

14. 'ﬁicycle )

15.x ﬁroken fingernail
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DECLARATFON OF CRIMINALIST

I, Marc Scott Toylor,'declare as follows:

1. ‘} That | am a court-qualified expert in the fields of Criminalistics.and DNA
aholysis,:ond THa’r | have been appointed and have testified as an expert on
both polymerase chain reaction (PCR) and restriction fragment fength
polymorphism (RFLP) based DNA analysis.

2. That I have been appointed by the courts of various jurisdictions in California
and other states fo consult on and/or perform PCR and RFLP DNA fyping in
criminal cases in excess of 2,500 times, and | have testified for both the
defense and prosecQﬁOn in many of these cases.

3. That | drﬁ the diréc’ror of the forensic science laboratory of Technical
Associates, Inc.

4, That we perform DNA analysis on a variety of forensic specimens, and that the
resuits of our DNA profiling, my conclusions, and those of my staff have been
accepted by éoun‘s in NUMerous jQrisdicTions in Califomnia and other states.

5. That I regularly attend forensic science meetings and stay abreast of the
current litferature in this field.

é. That my laboratory has performed extraciions of DNA clﬁd PCR—bused DNA
typing on in excess of 25,000 samples.

7. That the systems cur‘r@vn’r.ly used in my lab are the various PCR based Short.
Tandem Repeat {STR) multiplex sysfems including the AmpFISTR Identifiler,

MiniFiler, Profiler Plus, and COfiler sys‘rems, including sex determination ufilizing

TA2826.D.20101020A doc Initict ,@ | | Page 1 of 7
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10,

11.

12.
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the Ameiogénin gene, as well as Y-STR DNA oncﬂYsis.

Tﬁqf our laboratory procedures require participation in periodic external
proficiency tests to verify the accuracy of our DNA typing, and that these |
surveys have affirmed the validity of our procedures and the accuracy of our
DNA typing results. |
That | developed the multiplex system that allows the Co—amplificuﬁon of the
Amelogenin gene in a single reaction with the six Polymarker loci: that nﬁy
Iqborcﬁory has performed validation on this mulfiplex system; and that the
manuscript describing this technique dnd its validation has been published by
the peer reviewed Jourmnal of Forensic Sciences, January 1997.

That I have been cerlified as DNA Technical Leader/Technical Manager by
unanimous decision of the Credentials Review Committee for the American
Society of Crime Laboratory Directors {ASCLD).

That in addition to this, | have presented numerous papers and posters at
scienfific meetings dealing with many of the techniques developed by my
laboratory for DNA typing. That the techniques developed by my laboratory
and myself hove been adopted and are utilized in numerous laboratories
across fl;xe United States. |

That I have implemented the systemns In use for DNA analysis at Technical
Associates, Inc., which include the development of new procedures for the
exfrocfién of DNA from certain specimen types to increase the quc«'nﬁ’ry and

quality of DNA isolated.

TA2826.D.20101020A doc Initiql £ : Page 2 of 7
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13.  That | have been retained by the Federal Public Defender's office in Arzona
v. Jeffrey andrfgon, Case #05-1575, to provide éxperr assistance to defense
cansel.

14, That a primary function of my laboratory is DNA testing and retesting in

| Criminal cases. |

15. " That in this case we were asked to examine and perform serological
evaluation and DNA typing on several items of evidence cbllecfed from the
scene of a murder which Jeffrey Landrigan was charged with committing.

16, That the items we were asked fo examine under case number CR90-00066
were: the blue jeans that were worn by the victim when his body was
discovered (Phoenix Police Department DR #89—1‘86504, ltem #22), the blue
blanket on which the body was found (Phoenix Police Department DR #89-
186504, Item #12) and o set of two curtains with blood stains from the
apartment in which the vicfim was found (Phoenix Police Department DR #89-
186504, Item #34). | |

7. That Thé curtdins, Phoenix Police Department DR #89-186504, Itern #36, were
found to have mulﬁplé reddish‘—broWn stains that appear to be blood and
react positively with d presumptive test for blood. These stains are highly likely
to be blood stains. .Two of the apparent blood stains on curtain #1 appear to
be blood spattered on the back side of this curtain. Curtain #2 ‘comoins o
possibte blood spatter on the front of the curtain and multiple smears on the

front and back of this curtain, The two blood spatters from curtain #1, the
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possible blood spatter from curtain #2 dnd one of the smeoré from the back
and one from the front of curiain #2 were sampled for DNA'anaI'ysis. All éf
these blood stains contained the same indistinguishable DNA préfile and
appear ’ré have oﬁgino’red from ‘rhe same male individual (desighated
Individual #1). Jeffery Landrigan is excluded as the source of ’rhe DNA
detected in ’rhése sampies.

18.  That the blue blanket, Phoenix Police Department DR #89-184504, ltem #12.
wdas found to be dirty covered with numerous different stains and many hairs.

- Multiple semen stains {containing acid phosphatase and sperm cells) were
located on the blanket. Three of these semen stains were sampled for DNA
qnalysis.. In addition, numerous apparent blood stains (appear to be blood
and positive with presumptive test for blood) were loco’red on the blanket.
Several large blood stains, inches across, were located and numerous smalier
blood s’rc:ins.. Three of these blood stainswere sampled for DNA analysis: one
of the large stains and two smailler stains. The semen stains sampled all
confained vmoderafely high nulmbers of sperm cells while the blood stains

sampled contained low numbers of sperm cells.

19. That alt of the DNA detected in the large blood stain from the blanket
appears fo originate from one individual. This individual is designated
Individual #2. Individual #2 cannot be excluded 'GS the primary donor of the
DNA detected in all three of the semen stains sampled from the blanket. Two

additional wedadk dlleles detected in the semen stains are inconclusive as o
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their source. Jeffery Landrigan is excluded as the source of the DNA
detected in these samples. |

20.  That the remaining ‘ryvo blood stains sampled from the blanket are mixtures of
DPNA from m_oré than one individual. The non-sperm DNA fraction from
sample 2826.03B criginates from one primary donor. Individual #2 cannot be
e;#duded as ’the source of this DNA. Individual #1 cannot be excluded as the
source of the remaining low leve] DNA detected in this mixiure, Neither
individual #1 hor individual #2 can be excluded as a contributor of some of
the DNA in the sperm cell DNA fraction from this sample, In oddiﬁon to these
two individuals at least one additional individual would have to be a source
of some of the sperm cell DNA detected to account for the dddiﬂono[ alleles
detected. Jeffery Landrigan is excluded as the source of the DNA detected
in this sample.

2i. The non-sperm and sperm cell DNA d’e’rec‘red ih sample 2826.03D originated
from one primary individual. Individual #1 cannot be excluded as the source

| of this DNA. Individual #2 cannot be excluded as the source of the remaining

low level DNA detected in this mix’rbre. A mixture of DNA from Indlividual #1
and Individual #2 can account for cnil-of Thé DNA detected in this sample.
Jeffery Landrigan is excluded as the source of the DNA detected in this
sample. |

22.  Thatthe blue jeans, Phoenix Police Department DR #89-186504, l’fem #22,

were found to be worn and sTairﬁed with numerous reddish-brown and yellow

TA2826.D.20101020A.doc lnid@ Page 5 of 7



le/28/2818 21:18@ 8E56761638 TAI

stains. Several semen sfafns {containing acid phosphatase and sperm cells)
were located on the blue jeans. Three of these semen stains were sampled
for DNA analysis. In addition, numerous apparent blood stains (appear to be
blood and pasitive with a presumptive test for blood) were locofeq on the
blue jeans. One large blood stain, inches across, and numerous smaller
blood stains were located on the bluejeqhs. Seven of these blood stains
were sampled for DNA analysis; the large stain and six smaller stains. The
semen 's’roins sampled contained low to high numbers of sperm cells while |
some of the blood stains sampled also confained low numbers of sperm cells,

23. | That the non-sperm and sperm cell DNA deteé’red in all three semen 's’roins
dppear to originate from one primary donor. Individual #2 cannot be
excluded as the source of the semen defected in these stains. Additional low
level peaks deteéfed in the semen stains are inconclusive as o their source.
Jeffery Landrigan is excludedlos the source of the DNA ‘defecfed' in these
samples. |

24.  That six of the seven blood stains sampled from the blue jedns appear fo
originate from one primary donor. Individual #2 cannot be excluded as the
source of the DNA detfected in these stains. Additional low level peaks
detected in these stains cre inconclusive as 1“0 their soufce. Jeffery Landrigan
is excfudeq as the source of the DNA detected in these samples.

25, That the remaining biood stain sampled from the blue jeans appears to

originate from one ‘primdryrdonor. Individual #2 cannot be excluded as the

. N
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primary source of the DNA detected in this stain. Individual #1 cannot be
excluded as the source of the additional low level alleles detected in this
sample. Jeffery Landrigan is excluded as the source of the DNA detected in
these samples. |

26.  That Jeffery Landrigan is excluded as the source of any on the DNA detected
in any of the samples tested in this case. |

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregeing is frue and correct to the best

of my knowledge. Executed this 20" day of October .2010', at Ventura, California.

Marc Scott Taylor, President

Technical Associates, Inc.
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA

g

STATE OF ARIZONA,

lrlf{l
POy L
: X
B

Plaintiff,

vs. No. CR 90-D0066
No. CR 90-0323-AF

JEFFREY TIMOTHY LANDRIGAN,

Defendant.
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Phoenix, Arizona
October 25, 1990

BEFORE: The Honorable CHERYL K. HENDRIX

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

. By: Pauline Wood
Copy Official Court Reporter
Prepared for Appeal

SUPERIOR COURT

PHROENIX ARIZONA




NS ]

[o AV ]

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

32

murder was premeditated or not, but the Court will
at least concede for the purpose of this hearing
that there was no evidence of premeditation and will
find that to be a mitigating circumstance.

Because the only theory of culpability the
jury was instructed on in this case was felony
murder or accomplice culpability, the Court must
determine whether the defendant was the actual killer
or only an accomplice. If the defendant was not thé
actual killer but only an accomplice to the felony
that led to the killing or an accomplice to the
act of killing, the Court may impose death only if
it finds that the defendant attempted to kill -- or
intended to kill or that the defendant was a major
participant in the act which led to the killing and
the defendant exhibited a reckless indifference to
human life. The Court finds from the evidence introduced
at trial, the evidence at the sentencing hearing
and the entire case, and with particular regard the
Court would point to the testimony of Cheryl Smith
that she had a conversation with the defendant when
he indicated that he murdered someone, the Court finds
that the defendant was the actual killer, that he
intended to kill the victim and was a major participant

in the act. Although the evidence shows that another
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ﬂperson may have been present, the Court finds that

the blood spatters on the tennis shoes of the defendant
demonstrate that he was the killer in this case.

After weighing and considering the aggravating
circumstances that the defendant had two prior
felony convictions involving the use of.violence on
another person and committed the offense with the
expectation of pecuniary gain, and considering the
mitigating circumstances of love of family, love of
his family for him -- I believe I found one other
mitigating circumstance.

Mr. Farrell,vcould you refresh my recollection?

MR. FARRELL: I believe the Court has advised that
since there was no premeditation --
THE COURT: -- and no premeditation -- thank you

very much -- existed.

After weighing and considering these, I
find that the mitigating circumstances do not ocutweigh
the aggravating circumstances.

I'm also required to consider the nature
of the person and the nature of the offense involved.
I find the nature of the murder in this case is really
not out of the ordinary when one considers first degree
murder, but I do find that Mr. Landrigan appears to be

somewhat of an exceptional human being. It appears that
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